
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, September 11, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Welcome – Matt Greeson, Chair 

 Executive Committee Retreat 

 

2. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of July 10, 2014 minutes 

 

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

 Housing & Community Services Working Group 

 

4. Committee Updates 

 Boundaries Discussion Task Force – Eric Phillips, Co-Chair 

 Building Committee – Derrick Clay, Chair 

 Sustainability Advisory Committee – Marilyn Brown, Co-Chair 

 

5. Proposed Resolution 22-14: “ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN 

COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION (MORPC)” – William Murdock 

 

6. Proposed Resolution 23-14: “TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE DATE BY WHICH 

CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL CELEBRATE HALLOWEEN TRICK-OR-

TREATING” – Bernice Cage, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

 

7. Proposed Resolution 24-14: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR A FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND 

TO ENTER INTO RELATED SUBCONTRACTS” – Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC 

Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

8. Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 

 

9. Draft Commission Agenda 

 

10. Other Business 

 



 
 
Executive Committee Meeting 

September 11, 2014 

Page 2 

 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR 

ssaunders@morpc.org IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 

Thursday, October 2, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
Note: A portion of the eastbound lane of Liberty Street is closed through the end of 
2014.   
 
MORPC's parking lot is accessible via Front Street, Liberty Street, or Short Street.  
Please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with an “M”. 
Handicapped parking is available at the side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is 
accessible by C-Bus. 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, July 10, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Karen Angelou 

Marilyn Brown 

Derrick Clay 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Rory McGuiness 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Dennis Stapleton 

 

 
MORPC Staff Present 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Jason Kaper 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Thea Walsh 

Kathy Werkmeister 

 

 

Welcome – Matt Greeson 

Chair Matt Greeson called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. Mr. Greeson welcomed new MORPC 

Transportation Systems & Funding Director Thea Walsh. William Murdock introduced Ms. Walsh who began 

working with MORPC on Monday, July 7, 2014. Ms. Walsh is proud to be part of the MORPC team. Her 

previous work experience includes serving as the Deputy Chief of the Community Services Division at the Ohio 

Development Services Agency where some of her responsibilities were working with the Ohio Public Works 

Commission and the Local Government Innovation Fund. Ms. Walsh also served as Director of the Clark 

County-Springfield Transportation Coordination Committee, a metropolitan planning organization in 

Springfield, Ohio. Ms. Walsh looks forward to working with the Commission and its communities. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Eric Phillips made a motion to approve the June 5, 2014 Executive Committee meeting minutes, second by 

Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

William Murdock announced that MORPC, in partnership with Columbus 2020 and the Columbus Chamber, 

hosted a roundtable for the Administrator of the Federal Railroad Administration on Tuesday, July 8, 2014. 

Topics included freight, logistics, the Grow America Act, the proposed Chicago to Columbus passenger rail, 

and transit. 

 

Mr. Murdock traveled to Cleveland Wednesday, July 9, 2014, to meet with the Gund Foundation. MORPC is 

working with the Greater Ohio Policy Center, the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission, the Akron 

Metropolitan Area Transportation Study, and the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency looking for 

best practices among the nation’s metropolitan planning organizations. The Gund Foundation is a major 

funder of the effort. The trip was an opportunity to report on Phase 1 of the project. 

 

As required by his contract, Mr. Murdock informed the Executive Committee that he will be sending them 

written notice in August that his contract is up for renewal.   

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

July 10, 2014 

Page 2 

 
Mr. Murdock reported that after a discussion with Compensation & Benefits Committee Chair Joe Stefanov, 

the planned Compensation Study will be deferred to 2015. The delay is due to a number of operational items, 

such as the implementation of a new accounting system in January 2015. 

 

The process of relocating MORPC team members to better reflect the agency’s recent reorganization began 

this week. Most of the internal moves should be completed by Friday, July 11, 2014. A few minor capital 

improvements will be made in July and August. Mr. Murdock thanked Deborah Murphy and her team for their 

work on the project. One of the capital improvements is to move the Cardinal Conference Room to the front of 

the building. 

 

Mr. Murdock informed the committee that in recent weeks a parking problem arose due to neighboring 

buildings now being occupied and increasing attendance numbers at MORPC Commission meetings and other 

events. As a result, MORPC now has only about 6 to 10 spaces available for visitors, which is insufficient to 

support agency activities. As an interim solution, MORPC team members have been asked to park elsewhere 

when necessary to open parking for visitors. As a more permanent and affordable solution, Mr. Murdock 

indicated that most employee parking will be relocated  to the lot behind Kroger in order to open up a 

significant number of spaces for visitors adjacent to the MORPC building. This change will be implemented in 

the coming month.   

 

The next insight2050 Steering Committee meeting is Thursday, July 17, 2014. A meeting for Central Ohio 

mayors to provide them information about insight2050 will also be held the week of July 14, 2014. The 

insight2050 Newsletter began this week; Executive Committee members will receive the newsletter via email. 

The data collection phase went well and we are beginning to receive real information from the consultant. Joe 

DiStefano, lead consultant for the project from Calthorpe and Associates, will give a presentation at the July 

17, 2014 Commission meeting. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Co-Chairs, Franklin County Commissioner Marilyn Brown and Union County 

Commissioner Steve Stolte, met with MORPC team members to work on committee appointments. The first 

meeting is in September. Christina O’Keeffe and Kerstin Carr are the staff leads. Commissioner Brown shared 

her excitement about bringing together the business community and local governments in the sustainability 

effort. She thanked MORPC team members for taking the lead in planning the meetings and gathering 

information. 

 

The Housing and Community Services Working Group is finalizing its recommendations and will present them 

at the September Executive Committee and Commission meetings.  

 

Upcoming events: 

 RiverFest On Tour! Alum Creek Pedal & Paddle, Saturday, July 19, 2014 

 Union County Tour, Wednesday, July 30, 2014 

 RideSolutions Greener Workplace Forum with the City of Dublin – late July or early August 

 Gubernatorial Event, Friday, August 22, 2014 

 

Building Committee Update – Derrick Clay, Committee Chair 

Larry Herrett, the consultant hired to perform due diligence in the search, is completing his work. The building 

committee plans to present a report at the September Executive Committee meeting.   

 

Proposed Resolution EC-09-14: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO MAKE RELEVANT CHANGES TO 

THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION’S EMPLOYEE GUIDEBOOK” – William Murdock 

Eric Phillips made a motion to approve Resolution EC-09-14, second by Rob Platte; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution EC-10-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CITY OF 



Executive Committee Minutes 

July 10, 2014 

Page 3 

 
MARYSVILLE FY2014 COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPACT AND PRESERVATION PROGRAM FOR UP TO $88,000, IF 

FUNDED” – Kathy Werkmeister 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution EC-10-14, second by Tracie Davies; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution EC-11-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH THE CITY OF PATASKALA FOR THE ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CITY OF PATASKALA 

FY2014 COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPACT AND PRESERVATION PROGRAM FOR UP TO $82,000, IF FUNDED” – 

Kathy Werkmeister 

Rob Platte made a motion to approve Resolution EC-11-14, second by Karen Angelou; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution 19-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 

NATIONAL HISTORICAL PUBLICATIONS AND RECORDS COMMISSION FOR UP TO $50,000 FOR CONVERTING 

HISTORIC AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY TO A DIGITAL MOSAIC FORMAT” – Nancy Reger 

Derrick Clay made a motion to approve Resolution 19-14, second by Marsha Grigsby; motion passed. Marilyn 

Brown abstained. 

 

Proposed Resolution 20-14: “ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE IN ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2015” – 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Eric Phillips made a motion to approve Resolution 20-14, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution 21-14: “ACCEPTANCE OF THE MID-YEAR REVISION TO THE FISCAL BUDGET AND FUND 

ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 

2014” – Shawn Hufstedler 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution 21-14, second by Eric Phillips; motion passed.  

 

Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby 

MORPC Membership Coordinator Eileen Leuby led the Executive Committee through a MORPC Report Card 

exercise. Ms. Leuby asked members for permission to lead the Commission members through the exercise at 

the July 17, 2014 Commission meeting. The Executive Committee agreed by consensus. The results of the 

exercise will be used to help make more connectivity with members and determine where MORPC needs to 

increase outreach efforts. 

 

Commission members will be asked to complete the Conflict of Interest/Information Questionnaire each year. 

 

Ms. Leuby and William Murdock have visited each Commission member community and are beginning a 

second round of visits. A Township Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 9, 2014. MORPC and a few 

commission communities are pilot testing a grant finder program. 
 

Draft Commission Agenda 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft July 17, 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda. 

 

Other Business 

Eric Phillips congratulated Marsha Grigsby on her upcoming retirement in January 2015. 

 

Matt Greeson announced the officers and MORPC team members are making preliminary plans for an 

Executive Committee retreat in October. They will provide possible retreat dates to members and will solicit 

members for possible agenda ideas. 

 

Executive Committee members expressed their appreciation for the MORPC Organization Table provided to 

them. 

 

Matt Greeson reminded members there is no August meeting. 

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

July 10, 2014 

Page 4 

 
The meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Matt Greeson, Chair 

Executive Committee 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 5, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 22-14: "ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP 

(FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" 

 
 

 

The Clinton Township Trustees met September 3, 2014 and passed a resolution to 

join the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) and to accept the 

conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement. The attached 

resolution accepts Clinton Township as a member of MORPC, which will help meet 

the desire of MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization for the 

benefit of a stronger Central Ohio region. 

   

Attachment:  Resolution 22-14 



RESOLUTION 22-14 

 

“ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in order to 

ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township will be assessed $671 prorated dues based on 2013 population; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Clinton Township Trustees passed a resolution accepting the conditions of member-

ship contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That Clinton Township is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission effective September 18, 2014. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for Clinton Township is eligible to 

serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That Clinton Township shall be entitled to the same regular services of MORPC as 

other members and that any special services will be purchased by the Township 

based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: September 18, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 18, 2014 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Bernice Cage, Public Information & Diversity Officer 

Public & Government Affairs  

 

DATE: 

 

September 5, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 23-14: “TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE DATE BY 

WHICH CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL CELEBRATE HALLOWEEN 

TRICK-OR-TREATING” 

 

In July a conference call was held with our community membership and the Franklin 

County EMA to determine whether to maintain the current policy on changing the 

unified date for “Trick or Treat” and to address the issue of cancellation in the event 

of inclement weather.  Based on these conversations and input from the MORPC 

membership, the majority of MORPC membership supports continuing a unified date 

for “Trick or Treat”.  There was consensus from the membership that “Trick or Treat” 

not be cancelled in the event of inclement weather.  The membership further agreed 

to place on their websites and Social Media that “Trick or Treat” will be held, rain or 

shine, on the day scheduled. Media calls are to be referred to the Public Information 

Officers of the local jurisdictions and public calls are to be referred to local 

communities. 

 

It is the desire of the MORPC Board to support a unified date for “Trick or Treat”.  

MORPC’s members recommend that when Halloween, October 31, falls on the 

weekend nights of Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, “Trick or Treat” would be held on the 

Thursday prior to October 31.  If October 31 falls on a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 

or Thursday, “Trick or Treat” would be held on October 31.  In the event of inclement 

weather, the scheduled “Trick or Treat” will not be cancelled by MORPC or local 

jurisdictions.   

 

The schedule would be as follows through 2019: 

 

2014 - Thursday, October 30 

2015 - Thursday, October 29  

2016 – Monday, October 31 

2017 – Tuesday, October 31 

2018 – Wednesday, October 31 

2019 – Thursday, October 31 

 

 



 

 

Resolution 23-14 

Memo 

Page 2 

 

MORPC is a proponent of pedestrian safety and will continue to promote the 

importance of safety during “Trick or Treat”, rain or shine.  In that effort MORPC will 

place the following message on its website and on Social Media: 

 

“Trick or Treat” for most communities is scheduled, rain or shine, on Thursday, 

October 30, 2014.  In the event of inclement weather, “Trick or Treat” will not be 

cancelled. Parents are encouraged, however, to exercise judgment in allowing 

children to participate.  Please contact your local community to confirm the day for 

Trick or Treat in your area and for further details. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 23-14 

  

 



RESOLUTION 23-14 

 

“TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE DATE BY WHICH CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL CELEBRATE 

HALLOWEEN TRICK-OR-TREATING” 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) to recommend a 

unified date by which Central Ohio communities will schedule “Trick or Treat”; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recommends that when Halloween, October 31, falls on the weekend nights of 

Friday, Saturday or Sunday, then “Trick or Treat” will be held on the Thursday prior to October 31.  If 

October 31 falls on a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday, “Trick or Treat” will take place on 

October 31; and   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of inclement weather, MORPC recommends that “Trick or Treat” is not 

cancelled or date moved by MORPC or local communities; and   

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a proponent of pedestrian safety and will continue to promote safety during 

“Trick or Treat”, rain or shine; and therefore   

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

  

Section 1. That the Commission recommends a cooperative date and time period during which 

“Trick or Treat” will take place in Central Ohio communities. 

 

  Proposed schedule through 2019: 

 

  2014 - Thursday, October 30 

2015 - Thursday, October 29  

2016 – Monday, October 31 

2017 – Tuesday, October 31 

2018 – Wednesday, October 31 

2019 – Thursday, October 31 

 

Section 2. In the event of inclement weather, Halloween “Trick or Treat” will not be cancelled by 

MORPC or local communities. 

 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

Effective Date:  September 18, 2014 

Submitted by:  Bernice Cage, Public Information & Diversity Officer 

   Public and Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For Action Date: September 18, 2014 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 5, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 24-14: "AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR A FINANCIAL 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM" 

 
 

 

While multiple updates to the accounting software have been made 

throughout the years, MORPC has been using the same financial accounting 

system (MS Dynamics SL) since 2001 and has outgrown some of the set-up 

assumptions used when it was installed. In June 2014, MORPC issued a 

Request for Proposals looking for a financial accounting system more fitting to 

our needs that includes sufficient tracking and reporting for our agency.  After 

evaluating the proposals and viewing demonstrations, MORPC team members 

are finalizing the evaluation team decision to select a software and vendor for 

a new accounting system. 

 

The resolution requests authorization for the executive director to enter into 

agreement(s) with vendor(s) to purchase/license and install a new accounting 

system including training. The costs are expected to be $125,000 or less in 

the first year and $20,000 or less annually thereafter. Our current system 

installed in 2001 had a purchase, installation and training cost of 

approximately $100,000 with $8,112 annual costs. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 24-14 



RESOLUTION 24-14 

 

“AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR A FINANCIAL AC-

COUNTING SYSTEM” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has been using the same financial accounting system since 2001; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current financial accounting system has outgrown some of the set-up assumptions 

used when it was installed; and 

 

WHEREAS, in June 2014, MORPC issued a Request for Proposals for a financial accounting system; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after MORPC finance team members reviewed proposals and accounting systems 

demonstrations, and intend to select the best financial accounting system to meet MORPC’s needs; 

now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into agreements with one or more 

vendors for purchase/licensing of a financial accounting system including training 

and implementation in an amount not to exceed $125,000 for the first year, plus an 

amount not to exceed $20,000 annually thereafter. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions of time 

for performance of services under the foregoing agreement and change orders not to 

exceed 20 percent of the original total agreement price without further authorization 

from this Commission. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 

necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: September 18, 2014 

Submitted by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 18, 2014 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 5, 2014 

SUBJECT: Financial Report – July 2014 
 

 

Summary 

 

Overall, the financial statements show an operating loss of approximately $35,000, 

0.5% of total revenues. The cash position was approximately $600,000. Through the 

July, the actual overhead and fringe rates were significantly more than budgeted 

(unfavorable) and are continuing to be monitored including consideration of budget 

reductions.  

 

Operating Income (Measurement focus: management of current operations) 

 

There has been a decrease in net assets from operations on a year-to-date basis of 

$34,809. This is primarily the result of using slightly more dues than the amount of 

recorded dues revenue at this point in the year. The dues usage is expected to even 

out as the year progresses.  

 

Change in Net Assets (Measurement focus: economic resources) 

 

This measurement includes the effect on net assets of capital contributions and 

related depreciation in addition to income from operations.  Due to building fund 

interest along with offsetting cost of sales of NSP properties and capital contributions 

depreciation, net assets have decreased by $15,597 this year, including both 

operating and capital elements.  

 



Financial Statement – July 2014 

Page 2 

Member Dues 

Member dues revenue was 7.5% of total year-to-date operating revenue.  Uses of 

member dues were as follows: 

                     Year-to-Date 2014 

    Budget                 Actual 

Services to Members $ 161,352 
 

$ 166,288 

Local Matching Funds $ 165,092  $ 162,776 

Development Fund $ 52,739  $ 57,077 

Building Lease $ 36,143  $ 36,134 

Member Services Coordination $ 47,166  $ 54,104 

Leasehold Improvements & ---------

---------Building Due Diligence $ 58,333 

 

$ 16,855 

Other $ 31,767  $ 29,794 

Total $ 552,592  $ 523,028 

 

Indirect (Overhead) and Fringe Benefit Variances 

Indirect (Overhead) 

The actual indirect cost rate for the year-to-date was 55.4%, which is higher than 

the budgeted rate of 53.0%, creating an unfavorable variance for the year-to-date 

of $65,841. This is a variance caused by lower than anticipated direct labor, 

which causes less overhead funding to be collected.  This underabsorption is 

primarily the result of more than budgeted vacancies unfilled in direct 

departments during July and increased usage of vacations and holidays as 

opposed to direct charges to projects.  

 

Fringe Benefits 

The actual fringe benefit cost rate for the year-to-date was 64.99% which is 

higher than the budgeted rate of 59.0%, creating an unfavorable variance for the 

year-to-date of $137,538. The lower than anticipated direct labor charges 

mentioned above resulted in higher leave, sick and holiday fringe benefit costs. 

Additionally, health care costs are higher than expected, as significantly more 

employees were on MORPC’s insurance than budgeted.  

 

Statement of Net Assets 

 Cash on hand was $600,688 which was equal to 2.3 weeks worth of 

cash flow.  The HOPE 3 Trustee also held cash of $41,924 restricted to 

HOPE 3 costs and $129,253 restricted to NSP costs. The building sale 

proceeds cash account was just over $2.9 million. The building 

maintenance fund held $924,074.  

 Accounts Receivable totaled $2,029,648 which was less than the 

balance of $2,478,553 a year ago.  

 Accounts Payable plus Other Accrued Liabilities was $844,326 and 

similar to the $904,710 combined balance of a year ago.   

 



Financial Report – July 2014 

Page 3 

 

 

Expenses and Appropriations 

Year-to-date expenses totaled $6,799,695 or 49.5% of the total year's operating 

appropriations of $13,745,575 for the year as MORPC spent well within 

appropriations through the first 58.3% of the year. 
 








